ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COVM TTEE ON EDUCATI ON
April 2, 2007
8:04 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senat or Donny O son

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bettye Davis
Senator Gary W/ ken

COW TTEE CALENDAR

Overview. Vocational Transitional Skills Program
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record.

W TNESS REGQ STER

Roger Sanpson, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)
Anchor age, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented overvi ew

Cli ck Bi shop, Conmi ssioner

Departnment of Labor and Workforce Devel opnment
Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Participated in overview

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR GARY STEVENS called the Senate Special Comittee on

Education neeting to order at 8:04:35 AM Present at the call to
order were Senators O son, Huggins, and Chair Stevens.

VOCATI ONAL TRANSI T1 ONAL SKI LLS PROGRAM RCLL- QUT

ROGER SAMPSQN, Comm ssioner for the Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED), said that the departnment has been
looking for a way to enphasize work-ready skills in K-12

SENATE SED COW TTEE -1- April 2, 2007



education. He explained the differences between work-ready and
coll ege-ready skills, and how they’'re divided into foundationa
skills, technical skills, and soft skills.

8:07:25 AM

He said that currently school education is based on textbooks
and theory, which leads to non-practicality of skills for many
youth; the context of workplaces and postsecondary training
situations needs to be considered. The job skills assessnent
program that he was presenting, WrkKeys, would provide a way to
assess skills, profile jobs, and educate and train students,
helping to fix the gap between school and post-secondary
educati on readi ness.

He explained that WrkKeys assesses students' capabilities for
particular jobs on a scale of one to seven, based on their
capabilities in three areas: applied mathematics, reading for
information, and |ocating information. He then explained how the
scoring system would rate a potential enployee or student for a
particular job. A curriculum has been developed to target
specific skills associated to certain jobs. The skills are
aligned with Al askan standards, and there are managenent tools
for teachers and admnistration included; the program is
proficiency-based, so students don’t advance just because
they’ ve finished a | evel of the course.

8:14: 47 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if Conmm ssioner Sanpson woul d consider the
programto be standards-based.

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that he would. He added that the
prograns are available online or in hard copy, and there are
informative assessnents included. He then showed a slide to
denonstrate how the system would evaluate students for certain
jobs including nurses’ assistants and orderlies. Many enpl oyers
don't have enough of an enpl oyee pool from which to choose.

8:17:33 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if Comm ssioner Sanpson had any statistics
on wor kers’ conpensati on.

COW SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that he did have sone information

provi ded by current program users |ike the M dAnerica Pipeline
Conmpany, who use the programto solve enpl oynent issues.

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 2- April 2, 2007



8:18: 21 AM

CLI CK BISHOP, Comm ssioner for the Departnent of Labor and
Wor kf orce Devel opnent (DLWD), said that he didn't have such
information with him

SENATOR HUGGE NS said that he would assune that successful people
in the workplace woul d be one of the highlights of the program

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON expl ai ned how a diagnostic test could be
performed on a mddle school student to determ ne what Kkinds of
jobs would be appropriate for him or her; it wll encourage
students to reach a higher |evel of evaluation so as to be
qualified for nore different jobs.

8: 20: 38 AM

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that people tend to say that kids
don’t know anything, and so the high school qualifying exit exam
was created to have a benchmark. However, people are still

opining that kids don’t |earn enough, so this programw || teach
them to learn how to apply their know edge in a nore practica

way .

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if determ nation of notivation is
accounted for in the nodel.

COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that that is part of the program
in a broad way. It shows to kids that there’'s a huge nunber of
prof essions available for themto aspire to.

8:22:25 AM

COWM SSI ONER BI SHOP added that in visiting many schools, he's
seen that once a student |ooks at the thousands of opportunities
avai lable, they really see what the results of hard work in
school can be.

CHAI R STEVENS said that the program seenms to nesh well with the

fact that many people wll have nultiple careers in their
[ifetinme.
8:23:55 AM

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON sai d that on average people change careers
14 tinmes by the age of 38. The last section of the program

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 3- April 2, 2007



addresses this issue question; better hiring results in |ower
j ob turnover.

8:24:49 AM

COWMM SSI ONER BI SHOP enphasi zed that decreased training tinme and
costs are hugely inportant to busi nesses.

SENATOR HUGA NS said that the programis simlar to the European
schooling nodel, and that in his opinion many people nake career
deci sions based on exanples they see in life and not on a book
system

COW SSI ONER BI SHOP said that he has net a lot of school-age
yout h who don’t know what they want to do yet.

CHAIR STEVENS said that naybe the program would help a |ot of
yout h determ ne a career path.

SENATOR HUGA NS said that he thinks this program would be nore
effective in addressing truancy than truancy officers.

COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that prograns |ike WrkKeys have been
reduci ng enployee turnover, overtine, training costs, and
inmproving profit. He used the exanple of MdAmerica to show the
benefits of the program and said that the business world
supports this national standardized curriculum So far, no state
has inplenented this program at the K-12 level, but those that
have used it at secondary schools have seen increased exit exam
| evel s, SAT and ACT scores have inproved, and graduation and
attendance rates have i nproved.

8:30: 37 AM

He said that enployers have made it clear what they want to see
in potential enployees, and Al aska needs to look into different
ways to prepare its graduates; this elenent of the program is
not as devel oped as ot her areas.

SENATOR HUGE NS said that the program rem nds him of an Al askan
yout h acadeny, which was initially conprised of kids who were
bright but directionless. In later years, the kids in the
programwanted to find a systemto give themdirection

8:32: 30 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -4- April 2, 2007



COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON expl ai ned that the WrkKeys program offers
a Career Readiness Certificate (CRC) that allows an individual

to docunent his or her skills, and it provides a nmeasuring too

for enployers. He said that education can be tied to life
outside of and beyond school through the CRC, which is
nationally recognized. Schools are frustrated with trying to
remedi at e students who | eave hi gh school unprepared; the program
is a national training tool that provides a neans of neasuring
skills across the board.

He explained that incentives for a good program outconme need to
be made available through job shadowi ng, internships, reduced
training fees, and vouchers for post-secondary education. He
gave an exanple of how schools and businesses are interested in
using this program and showed an exanple of how a CRC would
benefit a prospective enpl oyee.

8:37:23 AM

He explained how the program is really just another curriculum
idea, but that it’s nationally recognized and easily neasurabl e.
He proposed that the state adopt a regulation to do a placenent
test with young students, and explained how the scale of the
scoring system works. The program could be used by a teacher in
a variety of ways, even with young students; if they see reasons
to increase their scores, they will try to do so. Requiring this
certificate will go a long way in getting students to try to
i nprove their perfornmance.

He suggested that the CRCs will attract many students who woul d
otherwse fail in the later years of high school. The program
woul d al l ow enphasis in technical skills early on for youth who
are otherwise uninterested in academa; it can be nanaged the
first few years through the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (DEED), if individual districts choose not to do so.
No new staff will need to be hired.

8:42:46 AM

CHAI R STEVENS thanked Commi ssioner Sanpson and asked how the
Wor kKeys program wll inprove education, and what sort of
category the programfits into.

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that the program is being pronoted by
the private sector as a way to teach kids the proper skills for
the positions for which they're hiring. Districts using this
curriculum have seen inprovenents not only in the technical

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 5- April 2, 2007



aspects of education but in general study as well. Many teachers
don't see the practicality of technical skills, so WrkKeys wll
provi de instructional guidance for that area. He expl ained that
there are only two conpanies that have provided this sort of
programin the US so far, and it's relatively inexpensive.

8:46: 30 AM

SENATOR HUGG NS said that while the program makes sense, nany
students do go to college, and he asked how the program w || be
kept fromfollow ng the nodel of other educational systens.

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that subjects can be taught in two
different ways; teaching the skill, and teaching ability of
applying the skill. Mst schools in the country just teach
know edge, and not application and anal ysis.

8:48:16 AM

SENATOR HUGA NS asked if any school principal could decide to
use the program or if an entire district nust decide together.

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON replied that any student would have access
to the program whether their school utilized it or not. It would
be nore effective with a school-w de base, but it can be done on
one’ s own.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if school districts will want to do this
program or if they m ght not be able to afford it.

COMM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that ideally no one new will have to
be hired to do this program and hopefully schools will see the
useful ness of WrkKeys and will at |east offer students access.
He gave an exanple of a district that used the program and
expl ai ned how useful the concept could be in giving a student
direction.

8:51: 50 AM

CHAI R STEVENS asked for the Board of Education’s opinion of the
program

COWM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that the board is prepared to nove
forward with the program and that there’'s no devaluing in the
program regarding collegiate versus technical appl i cation.
Comm ssioner Bishop is working on securing funding for buying

SENATE SED COW TTEE - 6- April 2, 2007



the Ilicensing and training, and regulation developnment is
under way.

8:53:27 AM

CHAIR STEVENS said that the program may be out of date in a
certain period of time, and asked how this can be avoi ded.

8:54: 09 AM

COWM SSI ONER  SAMPSON said that the job index is updated every
five years, and the program is nostly about transition, not
necessarily specific job training; the skills taught are core
skills that will be applicable for a lifetine.

CHAI R STEVENS said that the programis exciting, and asked where
support will need to cone from

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON sai d that he sees the program as a way for
the DLWD and DEED to work together, and that the nodel needs to
be noved forward wi thout imrediately asking for funding; the
licensing and processing can be done wthout a financia
commitment this fiscal year, and only mninmal support in the
future.

8:56:34 AM

COWM SSI ONER BI SHOP commented that this program is the first
step in an inportant process.

CHAI R STEVENS agreed that the program will have a big inpact on
Al askan school s.

COWMM SSI ONER SAMPSON said that the truancy issue would be better
resolved by a program such as WrkKeys, where the officers could
spend tine talking to kids about job possibilities. If the CRC
could be made notivating and stinmulating to youth, it would help
nore remain in school and graduate.

There being no further business to conme before the committee
Chair Stevens adjourned the neeting at 8:58:47 AM

SENATE SED COW TTEE -7- April 2, 2007



